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statement shall be on a form provided
by the Forest Service or a legible copy
of such form.

(1) On such form, described in para-
graph (b) of this section, the person
transferring the timber shall:

(i) Give notice to the person receiv-
ing the unprocessed private timber
that exporting that timber would vio-
late the Act and its implementing reg-
ulations;

(ii) Give notice to the person receiv-
ing the unprocessed private timber
that the timber has been identified for
domestic manufacturing by a spot of
highway yellow paint on each log end
that must be retained on the timber;

(iii) Agree to send a signed copy of
the transaction statement to the Re-
gional Forester within 10 calendar days
of the transaction;

(iv) Agree to retain records of all
transactions involving the acquisition
and disposition of unprocessed timber
for a period of three (3) years from the
date of disposal by manufacturing or
transfer and to make such records
available for inspection upon the re-
quest of an authorized official of the
United States;

(v) Acknowledge that failure to com-
pletely and accurately report and iden-
tify unprocessed timber is a violation
of the Act, and regulations issued
under the Act, and the False State-
ments Act (18 U.S.C. 1001); and

(vi) Certify that the form has been
read and understood.

(2) On such form, described in para-
graph (b), the person acquiring the tim-
ber shall:

(i) Acknowledge receipt of the notice
of requirement to domestically process
timber originating from private land;

(ii) Certify that a statement pursu-
ant to paragraph (b)(1) will be included
in any subsequent transaction docu-
ments;

(iii) Agree to maintain yellow paint
markings on each log end until the
timber is domestically processed or
transferred;

(iv) Agree to retain records of all
transactions involving the acquisition
and disposition of unprocessed timber
for a period of three (3) years from the
date of disposal by manufacturing or
transfer and to make such records
available for inspection upon the re-
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quest of an authorized official of the
United States;

(v) Agree to send a signed copy of the
transaction statement to the Regional
Forester within 10 calendar days of the
transaction;

(vi) Agree to allow authorized offi-
cials access to log storage and proc-
essing facilities for the purpose of mon-
itoring compliance with the Act and its
implementing regulations;

(vii) Acknowledge that failure to
comply with the domestic manufac-
turing requirements for unprocessed
timber or failure to notify subsequent
persons of this requirement may sub-
ject the certifier to the civil penalties
and administrative remedies provided
in the Act and regulations issued under
the Act;

(viii) Acknowledge that failure to
completely and accurately report and
identify unprocessed timber is a viola-
tion of the Act, and regulations issued
under the Act, and the False State-
ments Act (18 U.S.C. 1001); and

(ix) Certify that the form has been
read and understood.

(c) Except as otherwise provided by
law, a person who transfers unproc-
essed private timber to another person
and meets all notice, certification, ac-
knowledgement, distribution, reporting
and record Kkeeping requirements con-
tained in this section shall be relieved
from further liability for such timber
with regard to the export and substi-
tution restrictions pursuant to the Act.

§223.195 Procedures for identifying
and marking unprocessed timber.

(a) Highway yellow paint. The use of
highway yellow paint on unprocessed
logs west of the 100th meridian in the
contiguous 48 States shall be reserved
for identifying logs requiring domestic
manufacturing.

(b) Preserving identification. All iden-
tifying marks placed on an unprocessed
log to identify the National Forest
System origin of that log and/or to
identify the log as requiring domestic
processing shall be retained on the log
until the log is domestically processed.
If the identifying marks are lost, re-
moved, or become unreadable, they
shall be replaced. If the log is cut into
two or more segments, each segment
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shall be identified in the same manner
as the original log.

(1) A generic log hammer brand,
known as a ‘‘catch brand’”, used to
identify ownership, may be used to re-
place lost, removed, unreadable or oth-
erwise missing brands where such use
is authorized by the Regional Forester
and approved by the Contracting Offi-
cer. Use of such a catch brand on a log
or log segment will signify Federal ori-
gin.

(2) The requirement to preserve iden-
tification of log pieces shall not apply
to logs cut into two or more segments
as a part of the mill in-feed process im-
mediately before processing. Log seg-
ments that are returned to or placed in
storage must be marked on both ends
with yellow paint.

(c) National Forest System logs. Except
as otherwise provided in this sub-
section, all unprocessed logs origi-
nating from National Forest System
timber sales west of the 100th meridian
in the contiguous 48 States shall, be-
fore being removed from the timber
sale area, be marked on each end as fol-
lows:

(1) Painted on each end with a spot of
highway yellow paint not less than
three square inches in size; and,

(2) Branded on each end with a ham-
mer brand approved for use by the For-
est Supervisor of the National Forest
from which the logs originate. The
brand pattern may not be used to mark
logs from any other source for a period
of 24 months after all logs have been
removed from the sale area and until
such brand pattern is released in writ-
ing by the Forest Supervisor.

(d) Private logs. All unprocessed logs
originating from private lands west of
the 100th meridian in the contiguous 48
States that require domestic manufac-
turing pursuant to §223.194 of this sub-
part, shall be painted on each end with
a spot of highway yellow paint not less
than three (3) square inches in size be-
fore removal from the harvest area. If
private logs are acquired by a person
who may not export such logs, the logs
must be marked by the person acquir-
ing the logs at the time of the acquisi-
tion.

(e) Waiver of painting requirements.
The log painting requirements pursu-
ant to paragraphs (c¢c)(1) and (d) of this
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section may be waived if the Chief of
the Forest Service determines that al-
ternate methods for identifying logs re-
quired to be domestically processed are
equal to or better than the procedures
required herein.

(f) Waiver of branding requirements.
Regional Foresters may waive the
branding requirements pursuant to
paragraph (c)(2) of this section as fol-
lows:

(1) Regions 1, 2, 3, and 4. On an indi-
vidual timber sale basis, all or a por-
tion of the branding requirements pur-
suant to paragraph (c)(2) of this section
may be waived, if:

(i) Unprocessed logs from any origin
are not known to have been exported
by any person from the person’s area of
operations within the previous 5; years.

(ii) The person certifies as follows:

“I hereby request waiver of the require-
ments to brand each end of individual logs
originating from the timber sale,
Forest Service contract number pur-
suant to 36 CFR 223.195. I certify that I have
not exported or sold for export unprocessed
timber from private lands within my area of
operations in five years. I certify that I un-
derstand, that if granted, the waiver applies
only to unprocessed logs being processed
within my area of operations. I certify that
any unprocessed logs to which this waiver
applies that are transferred, or sold for
transfer, outside my area of operations will
be branded on both ends in full compliance
with 36 CFR 223.195. I make this certification
with full knowledge and understanding of
the requirement of the Forest Resources
Conservation and Shortage Relief Act of 1990
(16 U.S.C. 620, et seq.) (Act) and its imple-
menting regulations at 36 CFR part 223. 1
fully understand that failure to abide by the
terms of the waiver will be a violation of this
Act (16 U.S.C. 620, et seq.) and the False
Statements Act (18 U.S.C. 1001) and may sub-
ject me to the penalties and remedies pro-
vided for such violation.”’;

and,

(iii) The person otherwise complies
with the regulations relating to trans-
fers of logs between persons.

(iv) If the Regional Forester deter-
mines that unprocessed logs from my
origin are being exported, or are known
to have been exported within the pre-
vious 5 years, by any person from the
person’s area of operations, the Re-
gional Forester shall revoke the waiv-
er.
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(2) Regions 5 and 6. On an individual
timber sale basis, the branding require-
ment pursuant to paragraph (c)(2) of
this section may be waived for logs ten
(10) inches or less in diameter inside
bark on the large end may be waived if:

(i) One end of each log is branded;

(ii) The person certifies as follows:

“I hereby request waiver of the require-
ment to brand each end of individual logs ten
(10) inches or less in diameter inside bark on
the large end, originating from the
timber sale, U.S. contract number
pursuant to 36 CFR 223.195. I certify that I
understand, if granted, that the waiver ap-
plies only to unprocessed logs being proc-
essed at , and further certify that any
and all unprocessed logs to which waiver
would apply that are transferred, or sold for
transfer, will be branded on both ends in full
compliance 36 CFR 223.195. I make this cer-
tification with full knowledge and under-
standing of the requirements of the Forest
Resources Conservation and Shortage Relief
Act of 1990 (Pub. L. No. 101-382, August 20,
1990; 16 U.S.C. 620, et seq.) (Act) and its imple-
menting regulations at 36 CFR Part 223. 1
fully understand that failure to abide by the
terms of the waiver will be a violation of this
Act (16 U.S.C. 620, et seq.) and the False
Statements Act (18 U.S.C. 1001) and may sub-
ject me to the penalties and remedies pro-
vided for such violation.”’;

and,

(iii) The purchaser otherwise com-
plies with the regulations relating to
transfers of logs between persons.

(iv) If the Regional Forester deter-
mines that logs ten (10) inches or less
in diameter inside bark on the large
end are being exported in the Region,
the Regional Forester shall revoke the
waiver.

(3) The Chief of the Forest Service
may authorize the testing of alter-
native methods of branding for consid-
eration in future amendment of these
regulations. Such alternative methods
and logs marked under those methods
shall be closely monitored.

§223.196 Civil penalties for violation

(a) Exporting Federal timber. If the
Secretary of Agriculture finds, on the
record and after providing an oppor-
tunity for a hearing, that a person,
with willful disregard for the prohibi-
tion in the Act exporting unprocessed
Federal timber, exported or caused to
be exported unprocessed timber origi-

§223.198

nating from Federal lands in violation
of the Act, the Secretary may assess
against such person a civil penalty of
not more than $500,000 for each viola-
tion, or 3 times the gross value of the
unprocessed timber involved in the vio-
lation, whichever amount is greater.

(b) Other violations. If the Secretary
of Agriculture finds, on the record and
after providing an opportunity for a
hearing, that a person has violated any
provision of the Act, or any regulation
issued under the Act relating to Na-
tional Forest System lands, even
though that the violation may not
have caused the export of unprocessed
Federal timber in violation of such
Act, the Secretary may:

(1) Assess against such person a civil
penalty of not more than $500,000, if the
Secretary determines that the person
committed such violation willfully;

(2) Assess against such person a civil
penalty of not more than $75,000 for
each violation, if the Secretary deter-
mines that the person committed such
violation in disregard of such provision
or regulation; or

(3) Assess against such person a civil
penalty of not more than $50,000 for
each violation, if the Secretary deter-
mines that the person should have
known that the action constituted a
violation.

(c) Penalties not exclusive and judicial
review. A penalty assessed under para-
graph (a) or (b) of this section shall not
be exclusive of any other penalty pro-
vided by law, and shall be subject to re-
view in an appropriate United States
district court.

§223.197 Civil penalty assessment pro-
cedures.

Adjudicatory procedures for hearing
alleged violations of this Act and its
implementing regulations and assess-
ing penalties shall be conducted under
the rules of practice governing formal
adjudicatory proceedings instituted by
the Secretary. Such procedures are
found at 7 CFR 1.130, et seq.

§223.198 Administrative remedies.

In addition to possible debarment ac-
tion provided under subpart C of this
part, the Chief of the Forest Service, or
other official to whom such authority
is delegated, may cancel any timber
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